
 1

  
UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON TACOMA 

 UWT Executive Council  
Meeting Minutes 

 WCG 106 
 January 27, 2009 

Called to order at 12:30 p.m. 
In attendance:  
Chair, Michael Forman, Vice Chair, Johann Reusch, Mark Pendras, Janice Laakso, Marjorie 
Dobratz, Sian Davis-Vollum, Gregory Benner, Josh Tenenberg 
Guests: Vice Chancellor, Beth Rushing, Ex-Officio 
 
Synopsis: 
1. Approval of the agenda.  
 
2. Approval of minutes from Jan. 7, 2009 meeting 
 
3. Faculty Assembly roles and quorum 
 
4. Report from Senate Executive: potential RCEP revisions 
 
5. Research Program Incentive 
 
6. Adjournment  
1. Agenda was approved. 
 
2. Minutes were approved with corrections. 
 
3. Faculty Assembly roles and Quorum 
 
 Michael Forman opened by telling that he was also consulting with Marsha Killien 
(Secretary of the Faculty) and Linda Fullerton (Manager of Elections for the Senate) about the 
problem of achieving quora in Faculty Assembly. Forman then reviewed the Faculty Assembly 
Restructuring Plan (FARP) and the Meeting Attendance breakdown from 2001-2006 
(Attachment A).  
 
Option I of the FARP: 
One option, suggested by Killien and Fullerton, would be to return to the system whereby faculty 
who notified the chair of their absence would be removed from the quorum count. Review of 
attendance information cast doubt on the effectiveness of this approach. Forman asked Josh 
Tenenberg about Quorum when he was Vice Chair. Josh Tenenberg responded that his 
impression was that not enough faculty notified of their intended absence to make up for the 
small attendance. Those gathered agreed that there was no reason to expect that the system once 
in place would be effective were it reinstituted. 
 



 2

Option II:   
Forman reviewed the UWT handbook policy which indicates that a quorum consists of at least 
half the faculty and that 2/3 of these must approve of by-laws changes. He then reviewed all five 
points under Option II (attachment A). Marjorie Dobratz referred to part 3b concerning the EC 
(Executive Council) members appointed for the first 15 or 20 faculty per unit. She suggested that 
there be 20 faculty members per EC member.  
Tenenberg asked if there are any units with faculty members over 30. Forman responded that 
IAS and Business are the only units where this applies.  
 
Forman confirmed that Acting Assistant Professors are not voting members. Dobratz asked 
whether fulltime lecturers were part of the voting faculty. Forman confirmed that they were 
voting faculty.  
 
Sian Davis-Vollum asked whether this proposed change was similar to UW Bothell. Forman 
confirmed that their EC resembles UW Tacoma’s EC. 
 
Dobratz asked for further clarification about the operation of UWB faculty. Forman said their 
General Faculty Organization (GFO) is the equivalent of our Faculty Assembly. Bothell’s 
Executive Council acts on behalf of the GFO on most matters. As is the case with UWT, UWB’s 
EC represents the faculty in programs. Forman clarified that this proposal was a bit different 
because it sought to represent faculty or, rather, to balance a more representative structure 
against the potentially increased burden on the programs. Janice Laakso suggested that the 
wording should address the changes for the faculty assembly. 
 
Forman noted that he would consult with the UW Senate Secretary in order to fit this within the 
Code. 
Mark Pendras asked if there is any opposition to these proposed changes. Forman responded that 
he was not aware of any. 
 
Laakso asked whether changes should be discussed in each unit. Forman agreed that EC 
members should seek comment from their units.  
 
Davis-Vollum asked whether incentives had been considered to increase attendance at Faculty 
Assembly. Various EC members recalled that the previous FA Chair had offered a variety of 
small incentives, but these had not resulted in sufficient assistance. 
 
Tenenberg asked about the number of IAS faculty members. Forman thought there were 
approximately 50-55. Pendras suggested that 20 faculty members should be the threshold for an 
additional EC member. 
 
Tenenberg suggested that a system of proportional representation might better reflect the views 
of the faculty Forman agreed but he suggested that such a system might be too complex and that 
it would surely increase the burden on programs. Tenenberg was concerned that IAS would be 
the only unit with more representatives. Tenenberg asked about the number of faculty members 
at UWT. Star Murray, office assistant, said there were approximately 134. Beth Rushing said she 



 3

would get an accurate total count of the voting faculty and of their distribution by program. 
 
Greg Benner suggested that feedback should come from each unit.  
 
Action: Forman will change the language on the Faculty Assembly restructuring plan and contact 
Shelby Fritz for current voting faculty members.  
 
Pendras asked whether the Chair and the Vice Chair are voting members. Forman said they were. 
 
Dobratz noted that under Option II part 5, the voting could take up to five weeks. Forman 
clarified that the there was nothing in the new plan to require this. In fact, the new plan would 
require the Chair to convene the Faculty Assembly within no more than two weeks from the date 
of the actions described.  
 
Tenenberg asked whether there is a statute of limitations. Further discussion led the members to 
agree about the need for more specific time lines around the measures to ensure accountability in 
number V. 
 
Benner suggested expanding the time allotted to convene. Tenenberg asked whether there are 
existing voting requirements in the UWT Bylaws. Tenenberg suggested there should be a timely 
obligation to post Minutes.  Benner suggested that action items should be updated and 
highlighted on a web page. Forman responded that agendas could be posted in advance of 
meetings though this might result in inflexibility before rapidly changing events. Minutes can 
only be posted after their approval. Actions taken by the EC under the new structure could be 
promulgated as those of the UW Senate already are. 
 
Action: Forman will distribute a new document by January 30, 2009.  
 
4. Report from Senate Executive: Potential RCEP revisions 
Forman advised that changes to RCEP (Reorganization, Consolidation, and Elimination of 
Programs process) were likely to come up at the next Senate meeting. See attachment B 
 
Chapter 26 of the UW handbook covers the RCEP process. Proposed changes include adding 
Chancellors. 
 
RCEP process  

1) Emergency conditions: Chapter 26-31 
2) Reorganization of units 

• If units transition into colleges  
 
Reusch advised that there were concerns raised at an all-UW Faculty Senate/Assembly 
Leadership lunch that Deans meet and make decisions without faculty representation. 
 
Dobratz noted that there already is faculty representation in the Senate. 
 



 4

Tenenberg noted that Global Honors might be an in between program. 
 
Reusch asked about how the external faculty committees were convened (p.13, B 2a.). Forman 
noted that the Chair of the Faculty Senate convenes these meetings.  
 
Dobratz asked whether there were criteria to ensure that practices are fair.  
Pendras noted that these changes are improving the processes and keeping faculty in mind. 
Forman noted that he was still concerned about the definition of programs. Rushing noted that 
the definition of units is a larger problem within the code. 
Forman noted that for the Seattle campus their budget cuts were modeled at a higher amount than 
UWT. Forman advised that there was a complex process for closing a program. Pendras asked 
whether such measures had already been proposed. Forman said that the discussion in the Senate 
Executive Committee indicated that it was possible that the administration would consider 
cutting programs if the financial situation got worse. Forman said that Ch. 26-31 and 26-41 
created safeguards and complex processes which served to protect units and faculty. 
 
Dobratz noted that B 2 a-d did not refer to the budget (Attachment B). Forman noted that 26-31 
specifies how financial emergencies can be declared. 
 
5. Research Program Incentive 
Greg Benner introduced an additional item toward: the concerns of faculty and staff about the 
fact that the Research Program incentive policy was not being implemented. The Faculty 
Assembly approved the research incentive program on June 2, 2008. There was a brief 
discussion. Rushing said that Academic Affairs is working on this.  
 
(http://www.tacoma.washington.edu/academic_affairs/docs/Faculty%20Research%20Incentive%
20Program.pdf) 
 
Action: Forman advised that he would add this to the agenda at the next meeting. 
 
6. Adjournment 1:51 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment A:  

 

 5
 



 

 6



Attachment B:  

 
 

 7



 8



 9



 10



 11



 12



 
 

 13


